RFP-14-302 Pre-Bid Questions/Answers
(Responses are in bold and italics)

1. Can the CEC please affirm that Tasks 1 through 8 described in this RFP constitute the total array of activities to be funded under Phase I of this project? Alternatively, can the CEC identify specific tasks of Task 1-8 that are not included in Phase I?
Answer:  The tasks, as described in the RFP Statement of Work, are all that will be included in Phase I.
2. Can the CEC please affirm that the maximum funding available for Tasks 1 through 6 of this RFP is $1,000,000?
Answer: The maximum funding for tasks 1 through 6 is $1,000,000.
3. Can the CEC please affirm that the maximum funding potentially available for Tasks 7 and 8 of this RFP is $350,000 (if available through EPIC)? 
Answer:  The maximum funding for tasks 7 and 8 is $350,000.
4. Can the CEC please clarify the timeframe for the project? Page 9 of the RFP states that “the preliminary work [requested under this RFP] will be completed by June 2015 to support the contract development for the survey implementation contract (Phase II).” Can the CEC affirm that the above reference to “preliminary work” is synonymous with the services described under Task 4, Preliminary Commercial Survey Research Plan Development and Task 5, Implementation Plan Development? Assuming that “preliminary work” is synonymous with Tasks 4 and 5, we note that the reference that “preliminary work will be completed by June 2015” on page 9 of the RFP appears to be inconsistent with the Schedule of Deliverables and Due Dates, which suggests that performance of Tasks 4 and 5 will occur over a period just greater than six months, assuming a Contract Start Date of 4/1/2015 and the final deliverable under Task 5 due October 7, 2015. We note that the schedule provided in the Schedule of Deliverables is more feasible given the estimated start contract date in April of 2015. 
Answer:  The estimated dates within the Schedule of Deliverables provide the correct timeframe.
5. On page 15 of the RFP, Subtask 1.7 requests assistance in creating a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), whose composition will vary depending on interest, availability, and need, as determined by the CAM’s discretion. Does the CEC expect that TAC members will be paid for their time and expertise through this procurement? If time required of TAC members are to be paid through this procurement, will the CEC provide assumptions or guidance on the number of meetings (and number of hours per meeting) that the CEC anticipates will take place under his procurement? In addition, will the CEC provide travel assumption guidance for meeting participation of TAC members? Finally, will the CEC provide assumptions or guidance on the number of TAC members it anticipates will be required to support activities under this procurement. 
Answer: The TAC members will not be paid for their participation in this process through this contract. It is expected that, as potentially impacted stakeholders, they have an interest in providing input in the development of the survey.
6. As we understand, the services requested under Task 4 are for the development of an entirely new survey research plan for the CEUS - that is, while the Contractor can (and is encouraged) to leverage lessons learned from past survey instruments, the survey research plan requested under Task 4 does not necessarily need to be based on past CEUS survey research plans or a pre-existing survey research plan? Is this characterization of the scope of work under Task 4 accurate, and if not, can CEC clarify?
Answer: This is an accurate characterization. The expectation is that, guided by the new set of goals and objectives for the current survey, the new research plan will incorporate the industry best practices and leverage past learned lessons and the latest technologies and methods to obtain the best survey results possible.
7. Under Task 6, the RFP requests the Contractor design and implement a data management system consistent with the CEC’s Information Technology (IT) standards. Can the CEC share a copy of the CEC’s IT standards? 
Answer: Any computer related deliverables must meet the Energy Commission standards such as the following current database development standards: 

Enterprise Database: SQL Server 2008 R2 Standard 
Database Language: Transact SQL 
Data Exchange With Outside Entities: XML is the preferred format.
Others such as Word Doc, Access DB and Excel are allowed based on the requirement. 
Desktop Productivity Tool:  MS Access
8. To help inform budgeting of services requested under Task 6, would the CEC provide an estimate of the number of CEC staff likely to participate in training and knowledge transfer activities? In addition, could the CEC please indicate whether training participants are likely to differ substantially by topic? 
Answer: Although the number of staff participating in the training will depend on the topic area, we expect between 5 and 10 participants for most activities. Some training, if focused on a very specific topic, may only involve two or three staff.
9. On page 29, the Schedule of Deliverables and Due Dates indicates that the Draft Estimated Research Costs (under Task 2) is due 2 weeks after approval of Task 8 deliverables. Task 8 is related to implementation of the survey research plan within publicly owned utilities (POUs) service territories. Would it be accurate to interpret this Task 2 deliverable, as well as the Final Estimated Research Costs, as potentially “unanticipated”? Further, we assume that delivery of the Draft and Final Estimated Research Costs associated with IOUs would fall under Task 4; is this correct?  If not, can CEC clarify? 
Answer: The Draft and Final Estimated Research Costs required under Task 2 are to provide an estimate of the costs for the whole CEUS development and implementation (Phase I and Phase II.) The intention is to tie this deliverable to the end of the Phase I Contract as the Contractor will be in a better position to provide this estimate since the methodology will then be developed and Phase I near completion. 
10. I am a small business owner in California. I would like to know if my small business is eligible to apply as a subcontractor with multiple prime bidders for CEC RFP-14-302.
Answer: Yes. There is no restriction on a subcontractor appearing on multiple bids for this RFP.
If yes, then are there any pre-conditions to be met for the above.
Answer: No, but all applicants must meet the requirements in the RFP. 
11. For Task 4 Preliminary Commercial Survey Research Plan Development, will sample interval data, smart meter data, etc. be provided to the selected contractor for review when developing the research plan (i.e., procedures to clean and adjust monthly and interval-metered consumption data, testing and validation of a building energy demand analysis model, etc.)?
Answer: The Energy Commission will work with the Contractor to obtain the needed data; however, the cleaning procedures, adjustments, validation, and quality control work will be the responsibility of the Contractor. All work associated with the development of this data will be part of the data management system and will be delivered to the Energy Commission as specified in the RFP. Additionally, there will likely be training involved with these data procedures, system maintenance, and system development.
12. Is there an expectation for the number of professionals included in the TAC?
Answer: No. There should be an adequate representation of professionals to provide the needed guidance on the development of CEUS.
13. On page 18 of the RFP, Task 2 requires the Contractor to complete three Project Benefits Questionnaires that correspond to three main intervals in the Agreement: (1) Kick-off Meeting Benefits Questionnaire; (2) Mid-term Benefits Questionnaire; and (3) Final Meeting Benefits Questionnaire. Would the CEC be willing to share copies of these three questionnaires to allow bidders to gauge the length, complexity, and level of effort that may be required to complete the questionnaires? 
Answer: The evaluation of benefits is not expected to take much for this project. The questionnaires were created generically for all EPIC projects. However, as many of the standard questions do not apply to the CEUS, the Energy Commission will be focused on the benefits of the methodology developed in this contract in comparison over the last CEUS.
14. On page 19 of the RFP, Task 2 requests the Contractor to prepare a summary of commercial survey research costs, including an estimate or range of estimates of the likely total cost and cost per unit of obtaining the level of information the Contractor will be proposing, over the two phases of the project. However, as discussed on page 9 of the RFP, CEC indicates that this procurement only includes work undertaken as part of Phase I of this project; Phase II activities will be awarded and completed through a separate contract to a different Contractor in accordance with Public Resources Code Section 10365.5. Can the CEC clarify whether the summary of costs to be performed under Task 2 should also include activities to be performed under Phase II? If Phase II activities are to be included as part of the summary of costs to be performed under Task 2, will the CEC accept the development and use of a methodology that relies on “model” rates for different staffing categories to inform the development of an estimate or range of estimates of costs for Phase II activities? 
Answer: The Task 2 deliverable is intended to gauge the estimated costs for the CEUS based on the methodology developed in Phase I. This shall include the costs for Phase I as well as the estimated costs to implement the methodology the Contractor developed in Phase II. It is acceptable that the estimate for Phase II costs be varied per staffing categories based on market rates.
15. Please clarify the expected content of the “Task 1.9 Final Report”?  Is this report supposed to summarize all of the activities conducted by the Phase I Contractor, or is it expected to include a summary of the data collection, data analysis, and final end-use estimates? 
Answer: The Final Report shall include only those activities performed by the Phase I Contractor. However, the Contractor may include comments or suggestions on the implementation of the methodology. 
16. Will the Phase I Contractor be responsible for the analysis of the data collected by the Phase II Contractor? 
Answer:  Not explicitly; however, the Phase I Contractor has a support role responsibility which may include data analysis activities.
17. Given that bidders can only participate in Phase I or II, please provide additional information about the scope of Phase II with respect to data management, sample design, data analysis and reporting to help bidders optimally choose the phase best suited to their skills? 
Answer: Since the Phase II scope has not been defined it is difficult to describe in any detail the tasks and deliverables to be included in it. However, at a high level, we anticipate the Phase II Contractor will be responsible for implementing the survey data collection. In order to do that, the Contractor will likely be finalizing the sample design and other survey specific documents and methods. With respect to data management and data analysis, it is unclear the extent to which the Phase II Contractor will have a role in these activities but, at least in the case of data management, it will have to be significant since the Contractor will collect the data.
18. The Energy Commission plans to conduct the project in two phases with two different contractors. Would the CEC consider any of the following alternatives to the RFP’s current approach:
0. Modifying and re-issuing the RFP to combine Phase I and Phase II into a single solicitation?  
0. Narrowing the scope of Phase I such that it does not trigger PRC Section 10365.5? 
0. Reconsidering the determination that PRC Section 10365.5 applies. PRC Section 10365.5 seems appropriate for cases in which new projects are being conceptualized by a contractor and then subsequently bid out. In this case, the project in question has a long history and the final product that the CEC requires is relatively well known; in addition, the CEC has also previously indicated a budget for the entire effort.
0. Entertaining bids under the current solicitation for both phases? 

Answer: There have been significant discussions internally about the phased approach. The decision was made to proceed with a two-phased approach and that is how the solicitations are being structured. We appreciate your comments and suggestions but believe the phased approach better reflects our current needs.
19. Would the CEC consider an extension to the proposal due date or accelerating provision of answers to questions to November 21? The RFP says that answers to written questions will be released on Dec 2nd, with final proposals due December 16th. Ten (10) business days is extremely short to finalize a bid decision and develop a quality proposal, given the scope uncertainties associated with Phase I and Phase II and the current CEC assessment that PRC Section 10365.5 dictates that bidders must choose which phase to pursue. 
Answer: We have extended the dates per the Addendum released November 24, 2014. Please refer to the updated materials for the updated schedules and material:

http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/RFP-14-302/
20. Is this statement on page 9 correct: “The preliminary work will be completed by June 2015 to support the contract development for the survey implementation contract (Phase II)”?  Is this date incorrect?  The Preliminary Commercial Survey Research Plan, on which the RFP should be based, is not due until September 2015. 
Answer: Bidders should refer to the Schedule of Due Dates and Deliverables for the actual dates.
21. For budgeting purposes, it would very helpful to have more details related to the scope and expectations for each of the 14 different deliverables listed under Task 4. Many of the deliverables shown under Task 4 are not specifically described, and it is not clear which deliverables are expected to be interim memos and which are expected to be full-length reports. 
Answer: Although the specific details involving each of the deliverables under Task 4 will involve some discussion between the Energy Commission and the Contractor to ensure all the needed information is captured, the following descriptions should aid in illustrating some expectations:

· The stakeholder list deliverables can be relatively short but should include details including affiliation, expertise, and interest.
· Interview reports should be comprehensive and should include all information conveyed as part of the interviews as well as a summary discussion, aggregated highlights, and recommendations.
· The goals report should include all important factors in determining the overall goals and should provide details on alternative goals discussed and provide information on why the final goal selection was recommended.
· Survey summary documents should provide details on each of the evaluations performed, a thorough explanation of the breadth of evaluation, why certain strategies and methods were not included in the evaluation, if excluded, and a comparison of recommendations to best practice methods.
· The data management plan should be detailed and cover all needed procedures, methods, and detailed data specifications to allow for survey data management through this and future surveys.
· The methodology report should provide a detailed analysis of the methodologies available, a comparison of the benefits and risks for each approach, and recommendations containing a detailed discussion of the reasoning for the recommendations.
· The resource and technology evaluation and associated reports should be a complete evaluation of needs to implement the survey and meet all the objectives and goals identified for the project.
· The implementation schedule should contain the schedule and an associated discussion and description of the schedule to justify the schedule.
· The survey research plan should be culmination of all work leading up to this point and should provide additional detail on the how the survey will meet the goals and objectives, how the approach taken will allow for repeated and ongoing survey work, and provide insight as to why the recommended approach is the best strategy for the Energy Commission.

This information does not replace the description of the deliverables within the RFP, and the RFP description of Task 4 beginning on page 20 of the RFP is the official statement to which applicants will be held for purposes of the Contract.
22. Task 2 Evaluation of CEUS Benefits mentions three “Questionnaires”, but there is no description of the scope of the questionnaires, who is to be surveyed, or why the survey is done three times during the full cycle. Can you provide additional clarification? 
Answer: The questionnaires were developed generically in an effort to provide sufficient detail on the benefits for each project funded through the EPIC Program for reporting purposes. However, staff realizes that the standardized questions do not fit well with the CEUS project. Therefore, staff will concentrate on the benefits of the proposed methodology being developed under Phase I and implemented in Phase II, over the past CEUS. 
23. Since the on-site survey forms will be developed in Phase II, will the data management system developed under Phase I be limited to data collected for population sample development, pre-survey sample data, and billing data? 
Answer: This is a reasonable assumption; however, we will be looking at developing a flexible data management system that will aid with future survey activities. So the full scope of the data management system may include more than the population sample development, pre-survey sample data, and billing data.
24. What type of building modeling do you expect the Phase I team to undertake, if any?
Answer: Since the definition of the overall goals and objectives will play a significant role in determining the need for building modeling it is difficult to answer definitively. These activities, if undertaken, would be part of support task activities.
25. Please clarify if the two POU surveys in Tasks 7 and 8 are part of the Phase I scope or if they will be completed only if additional funding becomes available?
Answer: The POUs are part of the Phase 1 scope; additionally, funding is now available to perform the work.
26. Do you envision bidders bringing matching funds to this project? If so, which aspects, given that this is request for labor services?
Answer: Match funding is not required for this solicitation. However, proposals that include match funding will receive additional points during the scoring phase. Please see the sections in the RFP related to match funding. It is up to bidders to decide how best to use the match funding. 
27. Can you clarify the role that the DAO (Data Analysis Office) is likely to play in the Phase I work? Will it be to articulate data storage protocols - or be more involved?
Answer: DAO will be actively involved with all activities associated with the Phase I work. 



Questions and Answers from Pre-Bid Conference:
28. In the past the CEUS has been performed by a single firm. What is the reason for splitting the work into two phases in this round? 
Answer: The multi-phased approach was undertaken with the hopes to accelerate the process of obtaining data and providing the Energy Commission with additional support for oversight and quality control during survey implementation. 

Are there regulatory requirements that have changed which require both a planning/advisor consultant and a second firm to conduct survey?

Answer: The decision was based on Energy Commission needs.

29. For the Phase I Contractor, the Phase II Contractor, and the CEC, what is the role for each entity? 
Answer: The idea of the first Contractor is to define the scope of the whole activity, draft and finalize that preliminary research plan, which should detail how we’re going to implement everything, help with the procurement and training of support staff through the implementation with multiple types of training including project support. 
The Phase II Contractor doesn’t have a defined scope yet but will be tasked with the actual implementation of the survey: e.g., going out into the field, collecting data, that sort of activity. The Phase I Contractor would help in defining what that second phase activity would be and may also provide technical assistance to the Energy Commission during the implementation of the survey in Phase II. It is possible that the Phase I Contractor will be involved in some meetings with the Phase II Contractor as well, to provide clarification or confirmation on the methodology.
30. Does Phase II involve joint management by the Phase I Contractor and the CEC?
Answer: No. A contractor cannot directly manage work from a separate contract. However, the Phase I Contractor may provide technical assistance to the Energy Commission during implementation of the survey in Phase II.
31. Is the Phase I Contractor responsible for training the Phase II Contractor and everything that goes along with that?
Answer: No, the Phase I Contractor will not train the Phase II Contractor; it will train Energy Commission staff in management of the Phase II survey implementation. It is unlikely that the Energy Commission will independently implement surveys by performing site visits or site data collection. Consequently, the Energy Commission needs to be able to properly and effectively manage contractors implementing surveys. Phase I Contractors should provide training to Energy Commission staff to ensure the appropriate quality, management, and implementation insights and expertise are utilized for future survey implementations. 
32.  Will the Phase I Contractor help the CEC in supervision, monitoring, and evaluation of the activities of the Phase II Contractor?
Answer: The Phase I Contractor will assist the Energy Commission in project support including providing technical assistance during the survey implementation in Phase II. 
33. Is the training scope defined already?
Answer: No, training will be handled through the work authorization based tasks. Training will be defined in the work authorizations at the time the exact needs are identified by the Contractor and Energy Commission staff.
In submitted bids, please provide a breakout of funds for tasks. The only parameters are $350,000 for POU activity, $1 million for IOU activity, and 10% within each for work authorization tasks. For example, Task 6 would be 10% of the $1 million and Task 8 will be 10% of the $350,000. EPIC program funds cannot fund POU work.
34. Does the Energy Commission expect bidders to show a breakout budget for this, showing categories?
Answer: We’re looking for the bidders to provide a task budget for all of the non-work authorization tasks, keeping in mind the set budgeted amounts for the two WA-tasks.
35. What are the Phase I Contractor versus the Phase II Contractor’s responsibilities with respect to data analysis and reporting?
Answer: It depends; we haven’t defined Phase II activities. It may be that a large portion of that data analysis is within the Phase II Contract. Given the funding, it is unclear how much money would be available for the first Phase Contractor analytics through the work authorization-based activities. If there is a significant amount of work authorization-based task funding to support analytics, then the first phase Contractor would have a larger role. It all depends on how much analytics are going to be necessary and what we are going to be supporting, which will all be defined in the goal and the scoping activity that the Phase I Contractor will facilitate.
36. Is it possible for the Phase I Contractor to responsible for some survey data analysis and reporting?
Answer: Yes, the Phase I Contractor may have data analysis and reporting responsibilities depending on the allocation of funding in the first phase. Whether or not project support includes both technical assistance to the Energy Commission in providing feedback on the implementation of the survey in Phase II and analytics, depends on the final project scope and funding allocation.
37. In the Phase I Contract it says that if the person/team/contractors wanted to bid on Phase II, they could only get 10% of Phase I.
Answer: No. If you bid on Phase I and win, you cannot bid on the second phase. If you intend on actually bidding on the second phase work, which is not defined at this point, you should not bid on this first phase. If you want to bid on the first phase, part of the tasks are to define the specific tasks and the scope of work, as well as assist as a subject-matter expert, potentially evaluating the proposals that are submitted in the second phase solicitation. So you cannot bid on the second phase if you win the first phase. 
[This section of the RFP has been revised to reflect this correction in the addendum.]
38. [bookmark: _GoBack]If you are a subcontractor for Phase I, are you eligible to bid on Phase II?
Answer: If you are a successful bidder of Phase I, you will not be able to bid, regardless of whether you are bidding as a prime or subcontractor for Phase II because you are privy to the development of the scope of work as well as possibly helping to evaluate the proposals that are submitted for Phase II. So that is why we are trying to be very clear: if you are the successful bidder or a subcontractor to the successful bidder for Phase I, you will be precluded from bidding at all in Phase II.
39. Since there’s got to be interaction, you have to just plan on pulling that interaction out of Phase I because you’re going to have to do training on all the materials?
Answer: Yes. The Phase I Contractor may be providing technical assistance to the Energy Commission during the survey implementation. The Phase I Contractor will provide training to Energy Commission staff, assisting with the review of the proposals for Phase II, and assisting with clarifying technical questions during implementation of all work performed in coordination with the Phase II Contractor. In some situations, this coordinated activity would be facilitated by CEC staff.
40. To clarify, the RFP also identifies things like data validation and data quality oversight, those are tasks which I think are defined as a responsibility during the implementation for the Phase I Contractor?
Answer: Yes. 
41. On page 3 of the RFP, it lists available funding. Is that for Phase I and II or just Phase I?
Answer: Just Phase I.
42. As one of the tasks, the Contractor from Phase I should be able to define what will be approximate costs for Phase II activities?
Answer: Yes. It is a task within Phase I to estimate the costs of the total project.
43. In the RFP you mention building simulation. Is that a requirement for the analysis, that the methodologies chosen include building simulation, or is that just an option?
Answer: It is an optional component at this point because the scopes and goals for the CEUS have not been defined. The survey activities will be defined in the Phase I Contract as described in the RFP statement of work section.
44. Is the Phase I Contractor actually going to design the onsite survey instruments?
Answer: Task 4 includes ‘the scope of onsite survey instruments’. There may be a survey instrument drafted in Phase I including providing recommendations given the goals and objectives, but the finalization of both the research plan and any drafted instruments will occur in Phase II. Since the Phase II Contractor will be implementing the survey, there will be interaction between contractors and Energy Commission staff to finalize the documents. 
45. In relation to the scope, Phase I might be “we’re going to get information on HVAC systems” and Phase II would be “we’re going to collect this detail on HVAC systems”? What does scope actually mean? Or is it wide open? Are Phase I definitions of specific technologies possibly different from what might be implemented in Phase II?
Answer: It could be that they are different, but the intent is that the goals and objects in Phase I should clearly identify what our needs are going to be. Consequently, we will make decisions in Phase I regarding project scope including what we want done and at what level and detail data will be collected. Of course, there might be an instance where we decide to go with a new approach if presented with new information.
46. Regarding the advisory board, what are you looking for? Are these experts that will come in on a required basis or will there be a schedule? What sort of people are you looking for?
Answer: They could very well be experts but they could also be stakeholders or people who might be utilizing the survey data. They will have a role in defining the scope of the activity. The advisory board wouldn’t be just experts on how to do a survey and handle sample bias and other issues but also be someone who could have specific data needs.
47. Is the development of the final sample design to be implemented in Phase II in the scope of Phase I?
Answer: There will be a sample design developed and implemented as part of Phase I to inform planning activities for Phase II. Additionally, Phase I includes the development of a data management system for this data that will include sample population data to inform how many samples are needed in different regions to adequately characterize the population. Again, in order to plan for Phase II, we would need to have completed that analysis for Phase II procurement to estimate what the population is and how many samples we’ll need for our stratification. 
48. Will the actual instrument be finalized in Phase I?
Answer: No. The intent is that we might have a final draft instrument designed, just as we have a preliminary research plan. The second Contractor has to be able to come in and say ‘we have a suggestion on how to improve this process’ otherwise we have shut the door on the possibility of making minor modifications. Our current plan is to let the draft be finalized with the second Contractor.
49. Are universities or non-profits eligible to apply under this RFP?
Answer: Yes.
50. Traditionally in the CEUS, there is this data management system that you’ve got the Phase I Contractor developing. Then, in the next stage let’s say we finalize the on-site survey form, we go out and collect the on-site survey data, quality control is happening it sounds like in some combination of CEC staff and the Phase II Contractor, and then traditionally when the survey is out of the field and in the data analysis phase that combines answers to a lot of questions including the development of end-use load shapes and energy intensities. Is the idea that the Phase I Contractor developed data management tool would be used with the survey analyses, inputs, and outputs? What role will the data management system of the first phase have in the analytic component of the second phase?
Answer: It is uncertain at this point, but to the extent that we can create a data management system that will meet many of our needs – that would be the preference but it may not be possible. The scope of the data management system will be part of that first phase. Ideally, if we don’t have to have multiple systems – that would be great.
51. Does Phase I include the development of the data management system or just the design of the data management system?
Answer: Phase I includes the development of a Phase I data management system for the Phase I data work products and analyses. It is anticipated that the Phase I system would be distinct from any Phase II developed or managed data system. The Phase I data management system will be housed on the Contractor’s IT framework but as part of Tasks 6 and 8 it would be transitioned over to the CEC in its entirety with all the data as a working data management system for future use by the Energy Commission.
As part of the Phase I Contractor’s oversight and quality control responsibilities, Phase II survey results may be captured both in the Phase I data management system during implementation and any Phase II Contractor managed data system.
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